
Northern Inyo Healthcare District

Board Meetings
Board of Directors

February 19, 2025

Agenda

Agenda ............................................................................................................................ 3

Consent Agenda

Meeting Minutes - January 9/10, 2025 .......................................................................... 7
Meeting Minutes - January 15, 2025 ............................................................................. 9
CEO Credit Card Statement - February 2025 ............................................................. 12
CEO Credit Card Statement - January 2025 ............................................................... 18
AIDS HIV Testing and Orders ...................................................................................... 22
Billing and Collections ................................................................................................. 25
Billing Write Off ............................................................................................................ 30
Conducting Hot Work .................................................................................................. 32
Decorations, Receptacles & Heating Devices ........................................................... 35
Designing Building Systems and Risk Assessment ................................................. 38
Drugs of Abuse Maternal and Infant ........................................................................... 39
Emergency Response Plan-HVAC Failure ................................................................. 41
Extension Cords ........................................................................................................... 44
Finance and Audit Committee Charter ....................................................................... 47
Financial Assistance and Charity Care Policy .......................................................... 49
Fire Drills ....................................................................................................................... 56
Mandated Reporting Childe Abuse Neglect Dependent Adult Elder Abuse Inj ...... 59
Newborn Hearing Screening Program ....................................................................... 67
Northern Inyo Hospital Surge Plan ............................................................................. 75
Patient Restraints (Behavioral &Non-Behavioral) ..................................................... 82
Policy on Transfilling of Medical Gas Cylinders ....................................................... 98
Standardized Procedure – Adult Health Maintenance Policy for the Nurse Pra .. 100
Standardized Procedure – Well Child Care Policy for the Nurse Practitioner ...... 104
Standardized Procedure for Registered Nurse First Assistant ............................. 106
Standardized Protocol – Well Child Care Policy for the Physician Assistant ...... 109
Value Analysis Committee ........................................................................................ 111

Chief of Staff Report

Chief of Staff Report - February 2025 ....................................................................... 115

Page 1 of 256



Compliance Officer Report

2024 Annual Compliance Report .............................................................................. 116

Chief Executive Officer Reports

Chief Medical Officer Report - February 2025 ......................................................... 225
Quarterly Accounting Office Report - February 2025 ............................................. 229
Quarterly Purchasing and Clinical Engineering Report - February 2025 .............. 231
Quarterly Revenue Cycle Report - February 2025 ................................................... 232

Financial and Statistical Reports

CFO - Report Financial Summary and Operation Insights - December 2024 ....... 234
NIHD Financial Summary - December 2024 ............................................................. 237
NIHD Financial Statements - December 2024 .......................................................... 240
NIHD KPIs FYE 2025 Dec ........................................................................................... 244
NIHD Financial Statements - December 2024 PowerPoint ..................................... 246

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

Page 2 of 256

http://www.tcpdf.org


 
AGENDA 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS – REGULAR MEETING 

 
February 19, 2025, at 5:00 pm 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District invites you to join this meeting: 
 

TO CONNECT VIA ZOOM: (A link is also available on the NIHD Website)  
https://zoom.us/j/213497015?pwd=TDlIWXRuWjE4T1Y2YVFWbnF2aGk5UT09 
Meeting ID: 213 497 015 
Password: 608092 
 
PHONE CONNECTION: 
888 475 4499 US Toll-free 
877 853 5257 US Toll-free 
Meeting ID: 213 497 015 
 
The Board meets in person at 2957 Birch Street Bishop, CA 93514. Members of the public will be 
allowed to attend in person or via Zoom. Public comments can be made in person or via Zoom.   
 
Board Member, David McCoy Barrett, will attend from 401 Mercer Street, Seattle, WA 98109, via Zoom.   
 
 

1. Call to Order at 5:00 pm. 

2. Public Comment: The purpose of public comment is to allow members of the public to address the 

Board of Directors. Public comments shall be received at the beginning of the meeting and are 

limited to three (3) minutes per speaker, with a total time limit of thirty (30) minutes for all public 

comments unless otherwise modified by the Chair. Speaking time may not be granted and/or 

loaned to another individual for purposes of extending available speaking time unless 

arrangements have been made in advance for a large group of speakers to have a spokesperson 

speak on their behalf. Comments must be kept brief and non-repetitive. The general Public 

Comment portion of the meeting allows the public to address any item within the jurisdiction of 

the Board of Directors on matters not appearing on the agenda. Public comments on agenda items 

should be made at the time each item is considered.  

3. Public comments on closed session items 

4. Adjournment to closed session to/for:  

Page 3 of 256



Page, 2, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, February 19, 2025 
 
 

a. Public Employee Performance Evaluation pursuant to Government Code Section 

54957(b)(1). Title: CEO FY 2025 performance. 

b. Discuss trade secrets (Health & Safety. Code § 32106 and Civ. Code 3426.1). The 

discussion will concern a new service line. The estimated date of public disclosure is 

September 2025.  

5. Return to open session and report on any actions taken in closed session  

 
 

6. Consent Agenda – All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and will be 

enacted by one motion unless any member of the Board wishes to remove an item for discussion.  

a. Approval of minutes for the January 9/10, 2025 Special Board Meeting.  

b. Approval of minutes for the January 15, 2025 Regular Board Meeting 

c. CEO Credit Card Statements 

d. Approval of Policies and Procedures  

i. AIDS/HIV Testing and Orders 

ii. Billing and Collections  

iii. Billing Write Off 

iv. Chemical Hygiene Plan for Clinical Laboratory 

v. Conducting Hot Work  

vi. Decorations, Receptacles & Heating Devices 

vii. Designing Building Systems and Risk Management 

viii. Drugs and Abuse Maternal and Infant 

ix. Emergency Response Plan-HVAC Failure 

x. Extension Cords 

xi. Finance and Audit Committee Charter 

xii. Financial Assistance and Charity Care Policy  

xiii. Fire Drills 

xiv. Mandated Reporting Child Abuse/Neglect: Dependent Adult/Elder Abuse: Injury 

by Firearm by Assault/Abuse 

xv. Newborn Hearing Screening Program 

xvi. Northern Inyo Hospital Surge Plan 

xvii. Patient Restraints (Behavioral &Non-Behavioral)  

Page 4 of 256



Page, 3, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, February 19, 2025 
 
 

xviii. Policy on Trans filling of Medical Gas Cylinders 

xix. Standardized Procedure – Adult Health Maintenance Policy for the Nurse 

Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife 

xx. Standardized Procedure for Registered Nurse First Assistant 

xxi. Standardized Procedure – Well Child Care Policy for the Nurse Practitioner 

xxii. Standardized Protocol – Well Child Care Policy for the Physician Assistant 

xxiii. Value Analysis Committee 

 
 

7. New Business:  

a. Chief of Staff Report, Sierra Bourne MD 

i. Medical Staff Reappointments – Action Item 

ii. Request for Additional Privileges – Action Item 

iii. Medical Staff Initial Appointments – Action Item 

iv. Medical Staff Initial Appointments – Proxy Credentialing – Action Item 

b. Compliance Officer Report 

i. 2024 Annual Compliance Report – Action Item 

ii. Language Access Services – Information Item  

c. Chief Executive Officer Report (Board will receive this report) 

i. CEO Report 

1. Customer Service Training – Feb 2025 – Information Item  

2. Jorie/AI – Information Item 

3. Bishop City Council – Jan 13, 2025 – Information Item 

4. Townhall Community Meeting – Feb 6, 2025 – Information Item 

ii. Chief Medical Officer Report – Information Item 

iii. Chief Financial Officer Report 

1. Financial & Statistical Reports (Board will consider the approval of these 

reports) 

2. CFO Quarterly Report – Information Item 

 
 

8. General Information from Board Members (Board will provide this information)  

Page 5 of 256



Page, 4, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, February 19, 2025 
 
 

9. Adjournment 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you require special accommodations to participate in a 

District Board meeting, please contact the administration at (760) 873-2838 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.   

 

Page 6 of 256



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors            January 9/10, 2025 
Special Meeting  Page 1 of 2 
 
CALL TO ORDER Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) Board Chair Jean Turner called the 

meeting to order at 9:00 am.  
 

PRESENT Jean Turner, Chair 
Melissa Best-Baker, Vice Chair 
David Lent, Secretary 
Laura Smith, Member at Large 
 
Stephen DelRossi, Chief Executive Officer 
Allison Partridge, Chief Operations Officer / Chief Nursing Officer 
Adam Hawkins, DO, Chief Medical Officer 
Alison Murray, Chief Human Resources Officer, Chief Business Development  
     Officer 
Andrea Mossman, Chief Financial Officer  
 

ABSENT 
 

David McCoy Barrett, Treasurer 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT Chair Turner reported that at this time, audience members may speak on any 
items not on the agenda that are within the jurisdiction of the Board.  
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 

ALL THINGS LEGAL  Chair Turner called attention to All Things Legal. 
 
Attorney Noel Caughman presented.  

 
MATRIX OF LEADERSHIP Chair Turner called attention to the Matrix of Leadership. 

 
CEO DelRossi presented.  
 

TEAM BUILDING 
 

Executives and Directors engaged in a team-building activity.  

PLANNING FOR THE 
FUTURE – STRATEGIC 
PLAN  
 

Chair Turner called attention to the Strategic Plan.  
 
CEO DelRossi reviewed the strategic plan goals.  
 
Discussion ensued.  
 

GOVERNANCE 101  
 

Chair Turner called attention to Governance 101. 
 
CEO DelRossi reviewed the standing committees (Governance, Finance and 
Audit, and Compliance, Quality, Safety, and Risk) and their charters.  
 
Discussion ensued.  
 

BEHIND THE FINANCIAL 
NUMBERS  
 

Chair Turner called attention to Behind the Financial Numbers.  
 
CFO Mossman presented and explained how to read the financial reports.  
 

Page 7 of 256



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors            January 9/10, 2025 
Special Meeting  Page 2 of 2 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

Adjournment 4:00 pm, January 9, 2025.  

RECONVENE  
 

Reconvene 9:00 am, January 10, 2025.  

GOVERNANCE 201 Chair Turner called attention to Governance 201.  
 
CEO DelRossi presented differences between operations and governance.  
 

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS Chair Turner called attention to Employee Relations.  
 
CHRO/CBDO Murray presented information about the workforce, labor 
relations, collective bargaining, grievances, mediation, and arbitration.  
 
Discussion ensued.  
 

BUSINESS 
DEVELOPMENT  

Chair Turner called attention to Business Development.  
 
The Executive Team presented Business Development information. The 
discussion included the importance of meeting the community's needs while 
analyzing the stability of the hospital by adding or canceling service lines. 
 
Discussion ensued.  

TEAM BUILDING Executives and Directors engaged in a team-building activity.  
 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS Chair Turner called attention to Community Relations.  
 
The Executive Team presented information about community relations. The 
discussion included information on how the district handles complaints, and 
how the board can handle constituent complaints, marketing, community 
engagement, the auxiliary, and the foundation.  
 
Discussion ensued  
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Adjournment at 3:00 pm. 

 
 

______________________________ 
Jean Turner 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District  
Chair 

 
 

Attest: ______________________________ 
David Lent 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District Chair  
Secretary  

 

Page 8 of 256



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors            January 15, 2025 
Regular Meeting   Page 1 of 3 
 
CALL TO ORDER Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) Board Chair Turner called the 

meeting to order at 5:03 pm.  
 

PRESENT Jean Turner, Chair 
David Lent, Secretary 
David McCoy Barrett, Treasurer 
Laura Smith, Member at Large 
 
Stephen DelRossi, Chief Executive Officer 
Allison Partridge, Chief Operations Officer / Chief Nursing Officer 
Adam Hawkins, DO, Chief Medical Officer 
Alison Murray, Chief Human Resources Officer, Chief Business Development  
     Officer 
Andrea Mossman, Chief Financial Officer  
Sierra Bourne, MD, Chief of Staff  
 

ABSENT 
 

Melissa Best-Baker, Vice Chair 
 

TELECONFERENCING Notice has been posed and a quorum participated from locations within the 
jurisdiction.  
 

PUBLIC COMMENT Chair Turner reported that at this time, audience members may speak on any 
items not on the agenda that are within the jurisdiction of the Board.  
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT ON 
CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 
 

There were no comments from the public. 
 

ADJOURNMENT TO 
CLOSED SESSION  
 

Adjournment to closed session at 5:03 pm. 
 

RETURN TO OPEN 
SESSION 
 

Called back to order at 6:39 pm 
 
Chair Turner stated there were no reportable actions from the closed session. 
 

NEW BUSINESS  
 
GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE 
 

 
 
Chair Turner called attention to the Governance Committee Appointments. 
 
David Lent, Jean Turner, and Stephen DelRossi were appointed the members of 
the Governance Committee.  
 
Motion to appoint members for the Governance Committee: Lent 
2nd: Smith  
Roll Call Vote 

Turner - Pass 
Lent - Pass 
Barrett - Pass 

Page 9 of 256



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors            January 15, 2025 
Regular Meeting   Page 2 of 3 

Smith - Pass 
Pass 4-0 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER REPORT 
 

Chair Turner called attention to the CEO report. 
1. Audit 

a. Discussion ensued, the goal is to present the final audit in March 
2025.  

2. Seminar 
a. Discussion ensued, and preparation for next year's Seminar is 

underway. 
b. Board members commented that the Seminar went well, it was very 

informative.  
3. Financial Policies  

a. Discussion ensued.  
b. Policies will be reviewed and the proposed adoption is February 

2025. 
4. UCSF Alumni Achievement Award – Colleen McEvoy 

a. DelRossi shared that UCSF awarded Colleen McEvoy the 2025 
UCSF Alumni Practitioner Award.   

 
CHIEF FINANCIAL 
OFFICER REPORT 
 

Chair Turner introduced the CEO report. 
1. Financial and Statistical Reports  

 
Motion to accept the Financial and Statistical Reports: Barrett  
2nd: Smith  
Vote by roll call  

Turner - Pass 
Lent - Pass 
Barrett – Pass 
Smith – Pass 

Pass 4-0 
 

2. Jorie 
a. CFO Mossman expressed we are on track with Jorie's 

implementation. CEO DelRossi thanked the team for working 
diligently to implement Jorie in a crunched timeframe.  

3. Finance and Audit Committee meeting report  
a. Discussion ensued  

 
CHIEF OF STAFF REPORT Chair Turner introduced the Chief of staff report.  

 
1. Dr. Manzanares – Family Medicine 

a. Discussion ensued. Manzanares gave general updates regarding: 
Imaging, MAT, Staffing, patient appointments, appointment 
reminder system,  

2. Medical Executive Committee meeting report 
a. Chief of Staff Bourne expressed that Dr. Richardson with Inyo 

County Public Health came and spoke with the medical executive 
committee.  

 

Page 10 of 256



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors            January 15, 2025 
Regular Meeting   Page 3 of 3 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Chair Turner called attention to the consent agenda.  
 
Motion to accept the consent agenda: Lent 
2nd: Smith  
Vote by roll call  

Turner - Pass 
Lent - Pass 
Barrett – Pass 
Smith – Pass 

Pass 4-0 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Adjournment at 7:02 pm. 

 
 

______________________________ 
Jean Turner 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District  
Chair 

 
 

Attest: ______________________________ 
David Lent 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District Chair  
Secretary  

 

Page 11 of 256



Page 12 of 256



Page 13 of 256



Rev Cycle Travel 

Rev Cycle Travel 

Rev Cycle Travel 

Rev Cycle Travel 

Rev Cycle Travel 

Rev Cycle Travel 

Rev Cycle Travel 

Rev Cycle Travel 

Rev Cycle Travel 

Board Seminar
Board Seminar
Board Seminar
Board Seminar
CEO - Beckers

CEO - Beckers
CEO - Beckers

Page 14 of 256



CEO - Beckers
CEO - Beckers
CEO - Beckers
Rev Cycle
Rev Cycle
Rev Cycle

Rev Cycle

Board Clerk Conf.
Pharmacy
Pharmacy
Pharmacy
Rev Cycle
Rev Cycle

Rev Cycle

Rev Cycle
Rev Cycle
Membership Fee
Pharmacy
Pharmacy
Pharmacy
Pharmacy
Pharmacy
Pharmacy
Pharmacy
Pharmacy
Pharmacy
Pharmacy
Pharmacy
Beta Lunch
Marketing

Page 15 of 256



CFO Mailing

Page 16 of 256



Page 17 of 256



Page 18 of 256



Page 19 of 256



Gift - Board
Gift - Board
Holiday Party 
CEO Dinner
Gift Card 
Holiday Party 
Holiday Party 
Gift Card
Holiday Party 
Auxiliary Luncheon 
Auxiliary Luncheon 
Holiday Party 
Holiday Party 
Employee Gift Card
CNO Lunch
CEO Dinner
Nurse Traveler 

Marketing
Printing 
Marketing

Page 20 of 256



Page 21 of 256



 

Page 1 of 3 
AIDS/HIV Testing and Orders 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

CLINICAL POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 

 

 

Title: AIDS/HIV Testing and Orders 

Owner: Manager Employee Health & Infection 

Control 

Department: Infection Prevention 

Scope:  District Wide 

Date Last Modified: 01/29/2025 Last Review Date: No Review 

Date 

Version: 6 

Final Approval by: NIHD Board of Directors  Original Approval Date: 03/01/1991 

 

PURPOSE: 

To provide guidance for employees and medical staff on the legal requirements and responsibilities for Human 

immunodeficiency virus (HIV) consent and testing 

 

POLICY: 

1. Per California law, NIHD does not require written consent for HIV testing. 

2. Patients must be verbally informed of the intent to test and given the opportunity to consent or refuse 

testing. 

3. No one may be forced to have an HIV test.  

a. Exception: Law enforcement officers may obtain a court order for HIV testing without consent; HIV 

testing may be performed on blood already collected from the patient in cases of healthcare worker’s 

exposure events. 

4. If a person is incompetent, written consent for the test, as well as disclosure of the results, may be given by 

the patient’s parents, guardian, conservator, or other person lawfully authorized to make health care 

decisions for the patient.   

5.  Notwithstanding, first sentence in #4,  when the subject of the HIV test is a minor adjudged to be a 

dependent child of the court pursuant to Section 360 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, written consent 

for the test to be performed may be obtained from the court pursuant to its authority under Section 362 or 

369 of the Welfare and Institutions Code. HIV results for the patient may be known to healthcare workers 

involved in the care and treatment (those who “need to know”) of HIV tested patients.  

6. Positive HIV test results must be reported to their county local health officer per Title 17.  

 

PROCEUDRE: 

1. California Health and Safety (H&S) Code section 120990 (a), a medical care provider must:  

a. Inform the patient that an HIV test is planned;  

b. Provide information about the test; See attachments in English and Spanish. For other languages access 

link.  https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DOA/Pages/OA_prev_hivhcv.aspx 

c. Inform the patient of the many treatment options available to people who test HIV positive;  

d. Inform the patient that a person who tests HIV negative should continue to be routinely tested for HIV; 

and  

e.  Inform the patient he or she has the right to decline the test. The refusal must be documented in the 

patient’s medical record. 

2. California Health and Safety Code (H&S) section 125090 states HIV testing for pregnant women is routine 

prenatal care. See NIHD HIV Prevention Program, Perinatal Policy. 

3. Per California Health and Safety (H&S) 125090 for pregnant women the medical provider shall ensure the 

woman is informed: 

Page 22 of 256



 

Page 2 of 3 
AIDS/HIV Testing and Orders 

a. Of the intent to perform a HIV test; 

b. The routine nature of the test; 

c. The purpose of the testing; 

d. The risks and benefits of the test; 

e. The risk of perinatal transmission of HIV; 

f. The approved treatments are known to decrease the risk of perinatal transmission of HIV; 

g. That the patient has the right to decline the testing.  

(An information sheet with all of the required information is available at the California Department of 

Public Health (CDPH) Web site at:  

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DOA/Pages/OA_prev_hivhcv.aspx 

4. Written authorization from the patient is not required to disclose HIV results to healthcare workers       

providing direct patient care. 

5. Written authorization from the patient is required to release HIV results to other individuals or insurance 

companies. See NIHD Policy and Procedure AIDS/HIV Testing and Orders.  

6.  For minors below 12 years old, the parent, guardian or other person lawfully authorized to make health care 

decisions on their behalf must generally provide written authorization for a physician to disclose the minor 

child’s test results. 

7. HIV orders do not need to be on a separate order page, separated from other electronic orders, or in the 

confidential area of the patient chart. 

8.   If the HIV test results are positive they must be confidential and kept with the patient’s medical record 

either electronically or on downtime form.  

8. If there has been a potential exposure to a healthcare worker, please see NIHD Policy Initial Evaluation of 

Exposure Incident. 

 

REFERENCES:    
1.  California HIV/AIDS Policy Research Centers.  March 2019. California HIV Laws. Retrieved from 

https://www.californiaaidsresearch.org/topic-areas/hiv-laws_final.pdf 

2.  California Department of Public Health (CDPH). October 19, 2022.  HIV and HCV Testing. Retrieved from 

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DOA/Pages/OA_prev_hivhcv.aspx 

3.  MMWR, September 30, 2005 - Update: Updated US Public Health Service Guidelines for the Management 

of Occupational Exposures to HIV and Recommendations for Post exposure Prophylaxis. Retrieved from 

https://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/preview/mmwrhtml/rr5409a1.htm 

4.  California Consent Manual, California Hospital Association,  2021. Retrieved from 

file:///H:/Public/CHA/CHA%20Consent%20Manual%202021.pdf 

5.  Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. March 8, 2017. State HIV Testing Laws: Consent and 

Counseling Requirements. Retrieved from https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/policies/law/states/testing.html 

 

CROSS REFERENCE P&P 

1. Blood Borne Pathogen Exposure - Initial Evaluation of NIHD HCW    

2. HIV Testing Without Consent for Occupational Exposures  

3. Bloodborne Pathogen Exposure Control Plan  

4. Lippincott Procedures Reportable Disease 

https://procedures.lww.com/lnp/view.do?pId=3260871&hits=reportable,reported,reports,reporting,report&a

=false&ad=false&q=reportable  

5. Using and Disclosing Protected Health Information for Treatment, Payment and Health Care Operations  

 

RECORD RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION:  All provider orders and test results become a part of the 

medical record.  Medical records are maintained by the NIHD Medical Records Department. 

 

Page 23 of 256

https://www.californiaaidsresearch.org/topic-areas/hiv-laws_final.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/policies/law/states/testing.html
https://nihd.policytech.com/docview/?docid=6674
https://nihd.policytech.com/docview/?docid=5432
https://nihd.policytech.com/docview/?docid=7661&app=pt&source=unspecified
https://procedures.lww.com/lnp/view.do?pId=3260871&hits=reportable,reported,reports,reporting,report&a=false&ad=false&q=reportable
https://procedures.lww.com/lnp/view.do?pId=3260871&hits=reportable,reported,reports,reporting,report&a=false&ad=false&q=reportable
https://nihd.policytech.com/docview/?docid=5756


 

Page 3 of 3 
AIDS/HIV Testing and Orders 

Supersedes: v.5 AIDS/HIV Testing and Orders 

 

Page 24 of 256



 

1 
Billing and Collections 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT  
NON-CLINICAL POLICY AND PROCEDURE  

 
 
 

 
Title: Billing and Collections 
Owner: Chief Executive Officer Department: Administration 
Scope:  Patient Access, Billing and Collections 
Date Last Modified: 02/29/2024 Last Review Date: 02/22/2024 Version: 2 
Final Approval by: NIHD Board of Directors  Original Approval Date:  

 
PURPOSE: 
To provide clear and consistent guidelines for conducting cash and cash equivalent collection 
functions in a manner that promotes compliance with federal, state, and District rules, patient 
satisfaction, and efficiency.  
 
POLICY: 
In non-emergent circumstances, at or before the time of service, NIHD will collect the patient’s co-pay, 
deductible, and patient’s share on insurance eligibility.  In emergent circumstances, collection will occur after 
the patient has been stabilized and is no longer in distress from the medical emergency.  
 
PROCEDURE: 
General Rules: 
With respect to the collection of medical debt, the statute of limitations for breach of written contract is 
typically four years. The start time is either the most recent payment date, or the date on which the breach 
occurred – whichever happened later. 
 
Under state law, NIHD must allow a 180-day negotiation period, which is roughly equivalent to five months, 
for the determination of a payment plan. NIHD will not send medical bills to a debt collection agency until the 
180-day period has elapsed.  
 
The Fair Debt Collection Practices Act (FDCPA) and the California Fair Debt Collection Practices Act 
(CFDCPA) - Rosenthal Fair Debt Collection Practices Act - protects consumers from abusive or deceptive debt 
collection practices.  The FDCPA prohibits numerous consumer debt collection strategies.  The following 
actions will not be taken by NIHD:  

 Call repeatedly for the purpose of causing annoyance or distress. 
 Make threats of any kind. 
 Pretend to be lawyers, credit reporting company representatives, or government representatives. 
 Use abusive or obscene language. 

Before assigning a bill to collections or selling patient debt, NIHD will, at a minimum, provide the following: 
 Date or services of the bill; 
 Name of the entity to which the bill is being assigned or sold; 
 Declaration as to how to obtain an itemized bill and an application for the hospital's financial assistance 

and charity care program. 
 
 
Section 127430 - Written notice prior to commencing collection activities against patient 

Page 25 of 256



 

2 
Billing and Collections 

(a) Prior to commencing collection activities against a patient, the hospital, any assignee of the hospital, or other 
owner of the patient debt, including a collection agency, shall provide the patient with a clear and conspicuous 
written notice containing both of the following: 
(1) A plain language summary of the patient's rights pursuant to this article, the Rosenthal Fair Debt Collection 
Practices Act (Title 1.6C (commencing with Section 1788) of Part 4 of Division 3 of the Civil Code), and the 
federal Fair Debt Collection Practices Act (Subchapter V (commencing with Section 1692) of Chapter 41 of 
Title 15 of the United States Code). The summary shall include a statement that the Federal Trade Commission 
enforces the federal act. 
 
The summary shall be sufficient if it appears in substantially the following form: "State and federal law 
require debt collectors to treat you fairly and prohibit debt collectors from making false statements or 
threats of violence, using obscene or profane language, and making improper communications with third 
parties, including your employer. Except under unusual circumstances, debt collectors may not contact 
you before 8:00 a.m. or after 9:00 p.m. In general, a debt collector may not give information about your 
debt to another person, other than your attorney or spouse. A debt collector may contact another person 
to confirm your location or to enforce a judgment. For more information about debt collection activities, 
you may contact the Federal Trade Commission by telephone at 1-877-FTC-HELP (382-4357) or online 
at www.ftc.gov." 
 
(2) A statement that nonprofit credit counseling services may be available in the area. 
(b) The notice required by subdivision (a) shall also accompany any document indicating that the 
commencement of collection activities may occur. 
(c) The requirements of this section shall apply to the entity engaged in the collection activities. If a hospital 
assigns or sells the debt to another entity, the obligations shall apply to the entity, including a collection agency, 
engaged in the debt collection activity. 
 
Insurance Billing: 

 For all insured patients, NIHD will bill applicable third-party payers based on information provided by 
or verified by the patient or their guarantor in a timely manner.  Due to the nature of insurance billing, 
insurance may not process for up to a year after the service date; normally, bills are submitted on the 
fifth day after service, barring weekends and holidays, but many factors can delay the billing process. 

 If a claim is denied (or is not processed) by a payer due to an error by NIHD, NIHD will not bill the 
patient or their guarantor for any amount in excess of what the patient or their guarantor would have 
owed had the payer paid the claim. 

 If a claim is denied or is not processed by a payer due to factors outside of NIHD’s control, staff will 
follow up with the payer and patient or their guarantor as appropriate to facilitate resolution of the claim. 
If resolution does not occur after follow-up efforts, Northern Inyo Healthcare District will bill the patient 
or their guarantor. 

 After insurance adjudicates the bill, the appropriate entries will be added to the record. 
 If a balance remains on the account, the account will move to Early-out, Self-pay status. 
 The general flow of a patient’s bill is as follows: 

o Verification of benefits 
o Bill insurance company or companies – this may take up to a year, depending on insurers 

acceptance of bill; 
o After insurance resolution, bill appropriate amount as determined through contractual 

arrangements; simultaneously, the account moves to self-pay, early-out status – normally, this 
may take up to three months from insurance adjudication; 

Page 26 of 256



 

3 
Billing and Collections 

o Patient will receive 5 monthly statements, telephonic communications, or any other reasonable 
means of communication; 

o Patient will receive a “Good Bye” letter on the 6th statement – this will normally occur one 
hundred seventy-five days after the first statement - informing them, among others, that their 
balance is transferring to a debt collection agency; 

o Up until the time the account is sent to the collection agency, the patient has the opportunity to 
seek assistance, if assistance is still available due to timing issues, through the Financial 
Assistance and Charity Care policy.  

 
Patient Billing: Early-out and Self-pay  

 Hospital care at NIHD is available to all those who may be in need of necessary services.   
 Patient or guarantor may request an itemized statement at any time.  
 For uninsured patients, NIHD will bill uninsured patients or guarantors and they will receive a statement 

as part of the organization’s normal billing process.   
 NIHD will provide all uninsured patients their Notice of Available Financial Assistance and Charity 

Care Services.   
 For insured patients, after claims have been processed by third-party payers, NIHD will bill patient or 

guarantor the liability amount as determined by their insurer. 
 If a patient or guarantor disputes account, has questions or concerns, or requests documentation 

regarding the bill, NIHD will seek resolution.  Patient will be notified of findings. 
 NIHD may approve payment plan arrangements for patients or their guarantor who indicate they may 

have difficulty paying their balance in a single installment.  
 Generally, based on income, the balance may be financed for a length up to 60 months.  The length of 

the financing will be based upon the corresponding Federal Poverty Level (FPL), and as follows: 
o When the total income is at or below 100% of the FPL, NIHD will offer financing up to 60 

months with a minimum payment of $10.00 per month*; 
o When the total income is above 100% and equal to or lower than 200%, NIHD will offer 

financing up to 60 months with a minimum payment of $20 per month*; 
o When the total income is above 200% and equal to or lower than 250%, NIHD will offer 

financing up to 60 months with a minimum payment of $25 per month*; 
o When the total income is above 250% and equal to or lower than 300%, NIHD will offer 

financing up to 60 months with a minimum payment of $30 per month*; 
o When the total income is above 300% and equal to or lower than 350%, NIHD will offer 

financing up to 60 months with a minimum payment of $35 per month*; 
o When the total income is above 350%, NIHD will offer long-term financing up to 60 months 

with a minimum payment of $40 per month*; 
o Under unusual circumstances (e.g. outstanding balance greater than $1,500), the length of 

financing may exceed 60 months; 
 Approval must be obtained from the CFO for variances; 

o Financing must be offered in 6 month increments until an agreement is made; 
o The minimum amounts can be less than stated with the approval of the CFO. 

 * The minimum payment may be less than or more than stated above based on the individual’s ability to 
pay. 

 
NIHD is not required to accept patient or their guarantor initiated payment arrangements and may refer accounts 
to a collection agency as outlined below if the patient or their guarantor is unwilling to make acceptable 
payment arrangements or has defaulted on an established payment plan. 
 

Page 27 of 256



 

4 
Billing and Collections 

Collections Practices  
In compliance with relevant state and federal laws, and in accordance with the provisions outlined in this Billing 
and Collections Policy, Northern Inyo Healthcare District may engage in collection activities—including 
outsourcing to outside collection agency to collect outstanding patient balances. 

1. General collection activities may include patient statements, follow-up calls, letters, 
email, messages, or any other authorized form. 

2. Northern Inyo Healthcare District will make every effort to identify eligibility for 
financial assistance programs or charity for uninsured, under insured, or high cost 
patients. 

3. Patient balances may be referred to an outside collection agency for collection for all 
accounts greater than 180 days if financing arrangements were not reached.  The District 
will maintain ownership of any debt referred to debt collection agencies, and patient 
accounts will be referred for collection only with the following caveats: 
a. There is a reasonable basis to believe the patient or their guarantor owes the debt. 
b. All third-party payers have been properly billed, and the remaining debt is the 

financial responsibility of the patient or their guarantor. NIHD shall not bill a patient 
or their guarantor for any amount that an insurance company is obligated to pay.  

c. NIHD will not refer accounts for collection while a claim on the account is still 
pending payer payment. However, the District may classify certain claims as 
“denied” if such claims are in “pending” mode for an unreasonable length of time 
despite efforts to facilitate resolution.  

d. NIHD will not refer accounts for collection where the claim was denied due to a 
District error. However, NIHD may still refer the patient liability portion of such 
claims for collection if unpaid. 

e. NIHD will not refer accounts for collection where the patient or their guarantor has 
initially applied for financial assistance, charity care or other District-sponsored 
program and NIHD has not yet notified the patient or their guarantor of its 
determination (provided the patient or their guarantor has complied with the timeline 
and information requests delineated during the application process).  

 
Financial Assistance 
NIHD provides all patients or their guarantor the opportunity to apply for financial assistance or 
charity care for their accounts, payment plan options, and other applicable programs. 
 
NIHD assist patients or their guarantor with access to financial assistance and charity service 
programs during the collections process. 
 
See Northern Inyo Healthcare District Financial Assistance and Charity Care Program for procedure.  
 
IRS Rule: 
26 U.S. Code § 61 - Gross income defined 
(a)General definition 
Except as otherwise provided in this subtitle, gross income means all income from whatever source 
derived, including (but not limited to) the following items: 
 (11)Income from discharge of indebtedness; 
NIHD reserves the right to negotiate financing based on applicable IRS Codes and References. 
 
 
REFERENCES: 

Page 28 of 256



 

5 
Billing and Collections 

1. 26 U.S. Code § 61 - Gross income defined 
2. Fair Debt Collection Practices Act (FDCPA) 
3. California Fair Debt Collection Practices Act (CFDCPA) - Rosenthal Fair Debt Collection Practices Act 
4. Medicare CMS Manual 15: The Provider Reimbursement Manual. 

 
 
RECORD RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION: 
Maintenance of records is for a minimum of fifteen (15) years. 
 
CROSS REFERENCE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES: 

1. Financial Assistance and Charity Care Program 
2. Bad Debt Policy 
3. Pricing Transparency Policy 

 
 
Supersedes: v.1 Billing and Collections 

 
 

Page 29 of 256



Page 30 of 256



Page 31 of 256



Page 32 of 256



Page 33 of 256



Page 34 of 256



Page 35 of 256



Page 36 of 256



Page 37 of 256



Page 38 of 256



Page 39 of 256



Page 40 of 256



Page 41 of 256



Page 42 of 256



Page 43 of 256



Page 44 of 256



Page 45 of 256



Page 46 of 256



Page 47 of 256



Page 48 of 256



Page 49 of 256



Page 50 of 256



Page 51 of 256



Page 52 of 256



Page 53 of 256



Page 54 of 256



Page 55 of 256



Page 56 of 256



Page 57 of 256



Page 58 of 256



Page 59 of 256



Page 60 of 256



Page 61 of 256



Page 62 of 256



Page 63 of 256



Page 64 of 256



Page 65 of 256



Page 66 of 256



Page 67 of 256



Page 68 of 256



Page 69 of 256



Page 70 of 256



Page 71 of 256



Page 72 of 256



Page 73 of 256



Page 74 of 256



Page 75 of 256



Page 76 of 256



Page 77 of 256



Page 78 of 256



Page 79 of 256



Page 80 of 256



Page 81 of 256



Page 82 of 256



Page 83 of 256



Page 84 of 256



Page 85 of 256



Page 86 of 256



Page 87 of 256



Page 88 of 256



Page 89 of 256



Page 90 of 256



Page 91 of 256



Page 92 of 256



Page 93 of 256



Page 94 of 256



Page 95 of 256



Page 96 of 256



Page 97 of 256



Page 98 of 256



Page 99 of 256



Page 100 of 256



Page 101 of 256



Page 102 of 256



Page 103 of 256



Page 104 of 256



Page 105 of 256



Page 106 of 256



Page 107 of 256



Page 108 of 256



Page 109 of 256



Page 110 of 256



Page 111 of 256



Page 112 of 256



Page 113 of 256



Page 114 of 256



Page 115 of 256



Page 116 of 256



Page 117 of 256



Page 118 of 256



Page 119 of 256



Page 120 of 256



Page 121 of 256



Page 122 of 256



Page 123 of 256



Page 124 of 256



Page 125 of 256



Page 126 of 256



Page 127 of 256



Page 128 of 256



Page 129 of 256



Page 130 of 256



Page 131 of 256



Page 132 of 256



Page 133 of 256



Page 134 of 256



Page 135 of 256



Page 136 of 256



Page 137 of 256



Page 138 of 256



Page 139 of 256



Page 140 of 256



Page 141 of 256



Page 142 of 256



Page 143 of 256



Page 144 of 256



Page 145 of 256



Page 146 of 256



Page 147 of 256



Page 148 of 256



Page 149 of 256



Page 150 of 256



Page 151 of 256



Page 152 of 256



Page 153 of 256



Page 154 of 256



Page 155 of 256



Page 156 of 256



Page 157 of 256



Page 158 of 256



Page 159 of 256



Page 160 of 256



Page 161 of 256



Page 162 of 256



Page 163 of 256



Page 164 of 256



Page 165 of 256



Page 166 of 256



Page 167 of 256



Page 168 of 256



Page 169 of 256



Page 170 of 256



Page 171 of 256



Page 172 of 256



Page 173 of 256



Page 174 of 256



Page 175 of 256



Page 176 of 256



Page 177 of 256



Page 178 of 256



Page 179 of 256



Page 180 of 256



Page 181 of 256



Page 182 of 256



Page 183 of 256



Page 184 of 256



Page 185 of 256



Page 186 of 256



Page 187 of 256



Page 188 of 256



Page 189 of 256



Page 190 of 256



Page 191 of 256



Page 192 of 256



Page 193 of 256



Page 194 of 256



Page 195 of 256



Page 196 of 256



Page 197 of 256



Page 198 of 256



Page 199 of 256



Page 200 of 256



Page 201 of 256



Page 202 of 256



Page 203 of 256



Page 204 of 256



Page 205 of 256



Page 206 of 256



Page 207 of 256



Page 208 of 256



Page 209 of 256



Page 210 of 256



Page 211 of 256



Page 212 of 256



Page 213 of 256



Page 214 of 256



Page 215 of 256



Page 216 of 256



Page 217 of 256



Page 218 of 256



Page 219 of 256



Page 220 of 256



Page 221 of 256



Page 222 of 256



Page 223 of 256



Page 224 of 256



Page 225 of 256



Page 226 of 256



Page 227 of 256



Page 228 of 256



Page 229 of 256



Page 230 of 256



Page 231 of 256



Page 232 of 256



Page 233 of 256



Page 234 of 256



Page 235 of 256



Page 236 of 256



Page 237 of 256



Page 238 of 256



Page 239 of 256



Page 240 of 256



Page 241 of 256



Page 242 of 256



Page 243 of 256



Page 244 of 256



Page 245 of 256



Page 246 of 256



Page 247 of 256



Page 248 of 256



Page 249 of 256



Page 250 of 256



Page 251 of 256



Page 252 of 256



Page 253 of 256



Page 254 of 256



Page 255 of 256



Page 256 of 256


	Table of Contents
	Agenda
	Agenda

	Consent Agenda
	Meeting Minutes - January 9/10, 2025
	Meeting Minutes - January 15, 2025
	CEO Credit Card Statement - February 2025
	CEO Credit Card Statement - January 2025
	AIDS HIV Testing and Orders
	Billing and Collections
	Billing Write Off
	Conducting Hot Work
	Decorations, Receptacles & Heating Devices
	Designing Building Systems and Risk Assessment
	Drugs of Abuse Maternal and Infant
	Emergency Response Plan-HVAC Failure
	Extension Cords
	Finance and Audit Committee Charter
	Financial Assistance and Charity Care Policy
	Fire Drills
	Mandated Reporting Childe Abuse Neglect Dependent Adult Elder Abuse Injury by Firearm or Assault Abuse
	Newborn Hearing Screening Program
	Northern Inyo Hospital Surge Plan
	Patient Restraints (Behavioral &Non-Behavioral)
	Policy on Transfilling of Medical Gas Cylinders
	Standardized Procedure – Adult Health Maintenance Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife
	Standardized Procedure – Well Child Care Policy for the Nurse Practitioner
	Standardized Procedure for Registered Nurse First Assistant
	Standardized Protocol – Well Child Care Policy for the Physician Assistant
	Value Analysis Committee

	Chief of Staff Report
	Chief of Staff Report - February 2025

	Compliance Officer Report
	2024 Annual Compliance Report

	Chief Executive Officer Reports
	Chief Medical Officer Report - February 2025
	Quarterly Accounting Office Report - February 2025
	Quarterly Purchasing and Clinical Engineering Report - February 2025
	Quarterly Revenue Cycle Report - February 2025

	Financial and Statistical Reports
	CFO - Report Financial Summary and Operation Insights - December 2024
	NIHD Financial Summary - December 2024
	NIHD Financial Statements - December 2024
	NIHD KPIs FYE 2025 Dec
	NIHD Financial Statements - December 2024 PowerPoint


